UNION PARK EAST COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Advanced Board Package
Continued Meeting

Tuesday
April 16, 2019

9:00 a.m.

Residence Inn Lobby
2101 Northpointe Parkway
Lutz FL

Note: The Advanced Board Package is a working document and thus all materials
are considered
DRAETS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval or adoption.




UNION PARK EAST

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA

District Board of Supervisors Mike Lawson Chairman
Doug Draper Vice Chairman
Lori Price Assistant Secretary
Christie Ray Assistant Secretary
District Manager Paul Cusmano DPFG
Lore Yeira DPFG
District Attorney John Vericker Straley Robin Vericker
District Engineer Tonja Stewart Stantec Consulting Services, Inc.

All cellular phones and pagers must be turned off during the meeting.

The District Agenda is comprised of six different sections:

The first section which is called Audience Questions and Comments. The Audience Comment portion of the
agenda is where individuals may comment on matters that concern the District. Each individual is limited to three (3)
minutes for such comment. The Board of Supervisors or Staff is not obligated to provide a response until sufficient time for research or
action is warranted. IF THE COMMENT CONCERNS A MAINTENANCE RELATED ITEM, THE ITEM WILL NEED TO BE
ADDRESSED BY THE DISTRICT MANAGER OUTSIDE THE CONTEXT
OF THIS MEETING. The second section is called Administrative Matters and contains items that require the review and
approval of the District Board of Supervisors as a normal course of business. The third section is called Business Matters. The
business matters section contains items for approval by the District Board of Supervisors that may require discussion, motion and
votes on an item-by-item basis. Occasionally, certain items for decision within this section are required by Florida Statute to be held as a
Public Hearing. During the Public Hearing portion of the agenda item, each member of the public will be permitted to provide one
comment on the issue, prior to the Board of Supervisors’ discussion, motion and vote. Agendas can be reviewed by contacting the
Manager’s office at (813) 374-9105 at least seven days in advance of the scheduled meeting. Requests to place items on the agenda
must be submitted in writing with an explanation to the District Manager at least fourteen (14) days prior to the date of the meeting.
The fourth section is called Staff Reports. This section allows the District Manager and Maintenance Supervisor to update the Board
of Supervisors on any pending issues that are being researched for Board action. The fifth section which is called Audience Comments
on Other Items provides members of the Audience the opportunity to comment on matters of concern to them that were not
addressed during the meeting. The same guidelines used during the first audience comment section will apply here as well. The
final section is called Supervisor Requests. This is the section in which the Supervisors may request Staff to prepare certain items in
an effort to meet residential needs.

Public workshops sessions may be advertised and held in an effort to provide informational services. These sessions allow staff or
consultants to discuss a policy or business matter in a more informal manner and allow for lengthy presentations prior to scheduling the
item for approval. Typically no motions or votes are made during these sessions.

Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this
meeting is asked to advise the District Office at (813) 374-9105, at least 48 hours before the meeting. If you are hearing or speech
impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at 1 (800) 955-8770, who can aid you in contacting the District Office.

Any person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at the meeting is advised that
this same person will need a record of the proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of
the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.




UNION PARK EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, April 16, 2019
Time: 9:00 a.m.
Location: Residence Inn Lobby

Conference Call No.:

2101 Northpointe Parkway
Lutz, Florida 33558

(563) 999-2090

Code: 6868594

AGENDA
1. Roll Call
II. Audience Comments

III. Consent Agenda

A.
B.

IVv. Business Matters
A.

B.

Approval of Minutes for November 6, 2018 Meeting

Acceptance of the February 2019 Financials

Ratification of Resolution 2019-02 Re-Designating Officers

Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2019-03
Authorizing the Chairman to Execute Plats, Permits &
Conveyances

Ratification of Innovative Employer Solutions Inc. Payroll Service
Agreement

Acceptance of VenturesInc Host Website Proposal

Consideration and Approval of Preliminary Supplemental
Methodology Report

Consideration and Approval of Preliminary Engineer’s Report

Consideration and Approval of Resolution 2019-04 Delegated
Awards for 2019 Bonds

A o e

Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture

Fifth Supplemental Trust Indenture

Form of Bond Purchase Contract

Form of Preliminary Offering Memorandum

Form of Continuing Disclosure Agreement

Exhibit 1
Exhibit 2

Exhibit 3
Exhibit 4

Exhibit 5

Exhibit 6
Exhibit 7

Exhibit 8
Exhibit 9

Exhibit 10
Exhibit 11
Exhibit 12
Exhibit 13
Exhibit 14




Union Park East

Continued Meeting

B.

C.

DPFG Special Authorization No. 1 Agreement

FMS Bonds Rule G-17 Disclosure Letter

District Manager

Attorney

District Engineer

V.  Supervisors Request

VI. Audience Questions and Comments on Other Items

VII. Adjournment

April 16, 2019
Page 2

Exhibit 15

Exhibit 16




EXHIBIT 1.




O 0 1IN DN~ W —

—_—
—_— O

—_
EENVS I )

[
(9]

N NN = ===
W~ OO0 oI

N NN
[©) WU, I N

[\
|

28
29
30

31
32

33
34

35
36
37

38
39

40
41
42
43

MINUTES OF MEETING
UNION PARK EAST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Union Park East Community
Development District was held on Tuesday, November 6, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. at the Residence Inn, 2101
Northpointe Parkway, Lutz, Florida 33558.

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS - Roll Call

Mr. Cusmano called the meeting to order and conducted roll call.

Present and constituting a quorum were:

Mike Lawson Board Supervisor, Chairman
Doug Draper Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman
Lori Price Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary

Also present was:

Paul Cusmano District Manager, DPFG Management & Consulting
LLC

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the November 6, 2018 Union Park
East CDD Board of Supervisors meeting.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS — Audience Comments

There being none, next item followed.

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS — Consent Agenda
A. Exhibit 1: Approval of the Minutes from the September 27, 2018 Meeting

On a MOTION by Mr. Lawson, SECONDED by Mr. Draper, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board
approved the motion to accept the Consent Agenda item A for the Union Park East Community
Development District.

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS — Business Matters

A. Exhibit 2: Consideration and Approval of Resolution 2019-01; Adopting the Revised Budget
Amendment

On a MOTION by Mr. Lawson, SECONDED by Ms. Price, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved
Resolution 2019-01; Adopting the Revised Budget Amendment for the Union Park East Community
Development District.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS - Staff Reports
A. District Manager
1. Exhibit 3: Aquatic Systems October 2018 Report
B. Attorney

There being none, next item followed.




Union Park East CDD November 6, 2018

Regular Meeting Page 2 of 2
44 C. District Engineer
45 There being none, next item followed.
46
47  SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS — Supervisors Requests
48 There being none, next item followed.
49
50 SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS — Audience Questions and Comments on Other Items
51 There being none, next item followed.
52

53  EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS - Adjournment

54 Mr. Cusmano asked for final questions, comments, or corrections before adjourning the meeting.
55  There being no new additional items, and upon a motion duly made, seconded and unanimously carried, Mr.
56  Cusmano declared the meeting adjourned.

57 On a MOTION by Mr. Lawson, SECONDED by Ms. Price, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board
58 | adjourned the meeting for the Union Park East Community Development District.

59  *Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter
60  considered at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the
61  proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based.

62

63  Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed
64  meeting held on

65

Signature Signature
66

Printed Name Printed Name
67

68  Title: O Secretary 0O Assistant Secretary Title: o0 Chairman 0 Vice Chairman



EXHIBIT 2.




Union Park East CDD
Financial Report Summary - General Fund & Construction Fund

2/28/2019
GENERAL FUND 2017 A-1 2017 A-3
For The Period Ending : 2/28/2019 2/28/2019 2/28/2019
CASH BALANCE $ 170,343 $ 32,419 $ 1,515
PLUS: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - OFF ROLL - - -
PLUS: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - ON ROLL - - -
PLUS: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - OTHER - 1,585,594 83,493
LESS: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (135,608) (1,192,303) (10,694)
NET CASH BALANCE $ 34,735 $ 425,710 $ 74,314
GENERAL FUND REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES (FY 2019 YTD):
2/28/2019 2/28/2019 FAVORABLE
ACTUAL BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)
YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE VARIANCE
REVENUE (YTD) COLLECTED $ 159,230 $ 226,139 $ (66,909)
EXPENDITURES (YTD) (126,965) (122,275) (4,690)
NET OPERATING CHANGE $ 32,265 $ 103,864 $ (71,599)
AVERAGE MONTHLY EXPENDITURES $ 25,393 $ 24,455 $ (938)
PROJECTED EOY BASED ON AVERAGE $ 304,716 $ 415,735 $ 111,019
GENERAL FUND SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ACTIVITY: 2/28/2019 2/28/2019 FAVORABLE
ACTUAL BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE)
YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE VARIANCE
REVENUE:
ASSESSMENTS-ON-ROLL (NET) $ 121,470 $ 94,225 $ 27,245
ASSESSMENTS-OFF-ROLL (NET) 37,761 - 37,761
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE - - -
EXPENDITURES:
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES 37,481 52,052 14,571
FIELD SERVICE EXPENDITURES - LANDSCAPE 55,975 20,084 (35,891)
FIELD SERVICE EXPENDITURES - STREETLIGHTS - 26,250 26,250
FIELD SERVICE EXPENDITURES - POND MAINTENENACE 31,050 5,000 (26,050)
FIELD SERVICE EXPENDITURES - SECURITY - - -
FIELD SERVICE EXPENDITURES - OTHER 2,459 18,789 16,330
AMENITY CENTER EXPENDITURES - - -
RESERVE - - -
UNBUDGETED EXPENDITURES - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 126,965 $ 122,175 $ (4,790)
HISTORICAL GENERAL FUND BUDGET VS ACTUAL EXPENDITURES
COMPARISON
60,000
50,0008
40,0002 /\
30,0005
20,0002 J/\/\ ——— .
10,000%
Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19
e Budget 30,175 30,175 30,175 30,175 30,175 30,175 30,175 30,175 23,556 23,556 23,556 23,556 23,556
e Actual 9,190 5,980 6,065 15,622 16,766 28,077 9,437 21,330 47,724 21,883 19,170 11,727 16,060
Variance 20,985 24,195 24,110 14,553 13,409 2,098 20,738 8,845 (24,168) 1,673 4,386 11,829 7,496




EXHIBIT 3.







EXHIBIT 4.




RESOLUTION 2019-03

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF
THE UNION PARK EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT GRANTING THE AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE
REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY CONVEYANCE AND
DEDICATION DOCUMENTS, AND PLATS AND OTHER
DOCUMENTS RELATED TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF
THE DISTRICT’S IMPROVEMENTS; APPROVING THE
SCOPE AND TERMS OF SUCH AUTHORIZATION;
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Union Park East Community Development District (“District”) is a
local unit of special purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida
Statutes, and situated within Pasco County, Florida; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to construct, install,
operate, and/or maintain systems and facilities for certain basic infrastructure including, but not
limited to, stormwater management system, roadway improvements, water and sewer utility
systems, recreation improvements, underground electric, and other improvements; and

WHEREAS, the District has adopted, or intends to adopt, a report of its District
Engineer, as may be amended and/or supplemented (“Engineer’s Report”), which sets forth the
scope of the District’s capital improvement plan and the improvements which are to be
constructed therewith (“Improvements”); and

WHEREAS, in connection with the development of the Improvements in accordance
with the Engineer’s Report, which includes, but is not limited to, obtaining all necessary permits
and approvals from local governments and agencies for the construction and/or operation of
infrastructure improvements, the District is required, from time to time, to accept, convey and
dedicate certain interests in real and personal property, including, but not limited to easements,
plat dedications, deeds and bills of sale for infrastructure improvements (“Permits and
Conveyances”); and

WHEREAS, to facilitate the efficient development of the Improvements, the District
desires to authorize the Chair of the Board of Supervisors to approve and execute the Permits and
Conveyances necessary to finalize the development of the District’s capital improvement plan
(“Conveyance Authority”); and

WHEREAS, the Conveyance Authority shall be subject to the District Engineer and
District Counsel agreeing that each such proposed Permit or Conveyance is legal, consistent with
the District’s improvement plan and necessary for the development of the Improvements; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that granting to the Chair the Conveyance

Authority is in the best interests of the District so that the development of the Improvements may
proceed expeditiously, subject to the terms and limitations imposed by this Resolution.

{00076454.DOC/} 1



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE UNION PARK EAST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT:

1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals so stated are true and correct
and by this reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution.

2. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY. The Chair of the District’s Board of
Supervisors is hereby authorized to sign, accept or execute Permits and Conveyances as defined
above. In the event that the Chair is unavailable, any Board Supervisor is authorized to sign,
accept or execute Permits and Conveyances as defined above. The Vice Chair, Secretary, and
Assistant Secretary of the District’s Board of Supervisors are hereby authorized to countersign
any such Permits and Conveyances. Such authority shall be subject to the District Engineer and
District Counsel’s review and approval.

3. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or
invalid, the other provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and
shall remain in effect unless rescinded or repealed.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 16tTH DAY OF APRIL, 2019.

UNION PARK EAST COMMUNITY

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Secretary/ Assistant Secretary Chair/ Vice Chair Print
Print Name: Paul Cusmano Name: Mike Lawson

{00076454.DOC/} 2



EXHIBIT 5.




Payroll Service Agreement

This Payroll Service Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of April 1, 2019, between
the Union Park East Community Development District, whose mailing address is ¢/o DPFG, 15310
Amberly Drive, Suite 175, Tampa, Florida 33647. (the “District”) and Innovative Employer Solutions,
Inc., a Florida corporation, whose mailing address is 635 93rd Ave N, St Petersburg, FL 33712 (the
“Contractor”).

Background Information

The District has employees, and may hire additional employees from time to time, to assist with
the District’s operation and maintenance services. The Contractor provides payroll services and the
District desires to retain the Contractor to provide payroll services as described in this Agreement. The
District employees are not to be considered employees of the Contractor or covered by Contractor’s
workers' compensation.

Operative Provisions

1. Incorporation of Background Information. The background information stated above is true
and correct and by this reference is incorporated by reference as a material part of this Agreement.

2. Term of this Agreement. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for one year from the date
of this Agreement. At the end of the initial term, the Agreement shall automatically renew for the
same term and contract provisions as the initial term, until terminated by either party pursuant to
the termination provision below.

3. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause with thirty (30) days
written notice to the other party. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall be
entitled to payment for all work and/or services rendered up until the effective termination of this
Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off-sets the District may have against the Contractor.

4. District Responsibilities. The District is responsible for hiring and overseeing the District
employees, retaining insurance, including workers compensation insurance, for the District
employees as required by law, including any workers' compensation claims, benefit claims (if any
benefits are provided), employment discrimination claims, general liability claims, third-party
claims, and any and all other obligations or claims pertaining to employment.

5. Scope of Services. The Contractor shall perform the specific payroll services described below:

a) Based on information supplied by the District, the Contractor shall prepare and distribute
payroll checks to the District’s employees, make the appropriate payroll deductions and
collection of taxes, file the appropriate reports and make payment to proper governmental
authorities for federal, state, and local income taxes, Social Security tax, federal and state
unemployment insurance taxes and any other federal or state tax.

b) Contractor shall maintain necessary records and comply with reporting procedures and will
report and file such taxes utilizing client’s tax identification numbers.

6. Compensation. The District agrees to compensate the Contractor pursuant to the service fees and

other fees as specified on Exhibit A hereto titled "Fee Schedule.” All funds due to Contractor are
payable prior to Contractor’s issuance of payroll checks each pay period and shall be paid to

{00076529.DOCX/}



Contractor following the end of each pay period, no later than 2 business days prior to the date
paychecks are to be distributed to assigned employees.

7. Relationship Between the Parties. It is understood that the Contractor is an independent
contractor and shall perform the services contemplated under this Agreement. As an independent
contractor, nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to create a partnership, joint venture, or
employer-employee relationship between the Contractor and the District. The Contractor shall not
have the right to make any contract or commitments for, or on behalf of, the District without the
prior written approval of the District.

8. Compliance with Laws. The Contractor shall comply with necessary economic, operational,
safety, insurance, and other compliance requirements imposed by federal, state, county, municipal
or regulatory bodies, relating to the contemplated operations and services hereunder.

9. Insurance. The Contractor shall carry commercial general liability insurance of no less than
$1,000,000. The Contractor shall deliver to the District proof of insurance referred to herein or a
certificate evidencing the coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement and naming the District
as “Additional Insured” under such policy. Such insurance policy may not be canceled without a
thirty-day written notice to the District.

10. Indemnification.

a) Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the District and its supervisors, officers,
managers, agents and employees harmless from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits
or demands by any person, corporation or other entity for injuries, death, property damage
or of any nature, arising as a result of the negligence of the Contractor, including litigation
or any appellate proceedings with respect thereto.

b) To the extent allowable under applicable law (and only to the extent of the limitations of
liability set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes), and except and to the extent caused
by the negligence, reckless, and/or willful misconduct of the Contractor, the District agrees
to indemnify, defend and hold the Contractor and its supervisors, officers, managers, agents
and employees harmless from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by any
person, corporation or other entity for injuries, death, property damage or of any nature,
arising as a result of the negligence of the District, including litigation or any appellate
proceedings with respect thereto.

c) Contractor agrees that nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the
Districts limitations on liability contained in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other
statute or law.

d) The indemnifications provided under this section are and shall be deemed to be contractual
in nature and shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

11. Public Records. As required under Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, Contractor shall (a) keep
and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the District in
order to perform the service, (b) provide the public with access to public records on the same terms
and conditions that the District would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the
cost provided by law, (¢) ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt
from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law, (d)
meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no cost, to the District all public
records in possession of the Contractor upon termination of the contract and destroy any duplicate
public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure

{00076529.DOCX/} Page 2 of 4



requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is
compatible with the information technology systems of the District.

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING
TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC
RECORDS AT (813) 418-7473, OR BY EMAIL AT Paul.Cusmano@dpfg.com,
OR BY REGULAR MAIL AT 15310 Amberly Drive, Suite 175, Tampa, Florida
33647.

12. Controlling Law. This Agreement shall be governed under the laws of the State of Florida with
venue in the county in which the District is located in.

13. Enforcement of Agreement. In the event it shall become necessary for either party to institute
legal proceedings in order to enforce the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be
entitled to all costs, including reasonable attorney’s fees at both trial and appellate levels against
the non-prevailing party.

14. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder
of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

15. Assignment. This Agreement is not transferrable or assignable by either party without the written
approval of both parties, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

16. Arm’s Length Transaction. This Agreement has been negotiated fully between the District and
the Contractor as an arm's length transaction. In the case of a dispute concerning the interpretation
of any provision of this Agreement, the parties are each deemed to have drafted, chosen, and
selected the language, and any doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against any

party.

17. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which
when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such counterparts together shall
constitute, but one and the same instrument.

18. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and neither party is to rely upon
any oral representations made by the other party, except as set forth in this Agreement. This
Agreement shall supersede and subsume any prior agreements. To the extent that any provisions
of this Agreement conflict with the provisions in any exhibit, the provisions in this Agreement
shall control over provisions in any exhibit.

[signature page to follow]

{00076529.DOCX/} Page 3 of 4



{00076529.DOCX/}

Signature Page for Payroll Service Agreement

Union Park East Community Development
District

2ol

Chair/Vice-Chair of the Board of Supervisors

Page 4 of 4



Exhibit A
Payroll Service Fees

$49.00 per invoice processed. Delivery fee of $8.00 for the delivery of payroll to DPFG. No delivery
fee for payrolls delivered to DPFG in groups of two or more.

The New Account Set Up Fee is waived.
The New Employee Setup Fee is waived.
Client requested Stop payments are $35.

NSF Client Checks or ACHs are $35.

R-8.0



EXHIBIT 6.




APPLICATION HOSTING AGREEMENT
CommunityXS

IMPORTANT - READ CAREFULLY: This Application Hosting Agreement ("Agreement") is a legal Agreement between you, the organization or entity,
("Customer") and Venturesin.com, Inc. ("VenturesIn") which covers the hosting by Venturesin of the CommunityXS Content Management System.
Ventureslin agrees to provide Service to Customer and Customer agrees to pay Venturesin for Service subject to the following terms and conditions:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7

8)

9)

10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

Service Term:

a) The effective date of this Agreement shall be the earlier of either: (i) the date on which Customer is first notified by VenturesiIn of Service
availability or (ii) the date on which Customer first logs on to Service.

b) This Agreement shall remain in effect until unless terminated by either party by giving forty-five (45) days written notice to the other party.
Upon termination, Customer shall advise Venturesin as to the disposition of any Customer data that is stored as part of Service. A service
charge may apply. In the event no disposition instructions are provided or payment of the service charge is not made, any Customer data shall
be deleted by Venturesin.

Fees and Payments

a) Setup Fee: Not to exceed $240.00.

b) Service Fee: $60.00 per month.

c) Fees for the Service term and any associated services shall be invoiced in advance and shall be payable on receipt or in accordance with any
payment terms that are included on the invoice.

d) If payment is not made according to the terms of the invoice, VenturesiIn reserves the right to terminate service.

Services Provided:

a) Venturesin shall host a web content management system and delivery platform ("Software").

b)  Venturesln shall provide Customer with application level access to Software via an internet Uniform Resource Locator (URL) together with a
User ID and password. No direct access to server hardware, operating system, database management system or other system resources
shall be provided.

c) Venturesin shall store all Customer data created and managed by Software, including files, text and parameters; data shall be backed-up on a
separate storage system at regular intervals. The amount of storage and monthly network data transfer available to Customer shall not exceed
two gigabytes (2GB) and one gigabyte (1GB) respectively, unless otherwise agreed in writing by Venturesin.

Authorized Usage:

a) Customer agrees that access to Service shall be restricted to authorized agents.

b) Customer shall use commercially reasonable efforts to protect User IDs and passwords.

c) Customer agrees that authorized Venturesin support personnel may access system as required to diagnose and resolve technical issues.

Service Level:

a) Service shall be available to Customer at all times unless maintenance or upgrades require the system to be unavailable.

Limited Warranty:

a) Venturesln warrants that the Service will conform substantially with the Service Level for the term of the Service. Customer acknowledges that
VenturesIn does not warrant that the Service shall be uninterrupted or error-free.

Customer Remedies:

a) Venturesin’s entire liability and Customer's exclusive remedy shall be as defined in this Agreement. No other remedies are provided to
Customer under this Agreement.

NO OTHER WARRANTIES:

a) EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES STATED ABOVE, AND TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, VENTURESIN
DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED.

NO LIABILITY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES:

a) ITIS EXPRESSLY AGREED THAT IN NO EVENT SHALL VENTURESIN BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES WHATSOEVER (INCLUDING,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES FOR LOST PROFITS, DAMAGES FOR INCOMPLIANCE OR INABILITY TO COMPLY WITH
GOVERNMENTAL LAW OR REGULATION, LOSS OF DATA, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, OR OTHER CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY,
SPECIAL OR INDIRECT LOSSES) ARISING FROM YOUR USE, OR INABILITY TO USE, THE SERVICE. VENTURESIN'S ENTIRE
LIABILITY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY PAID BY CUSTOMER FOR THE SERVICE.

Prior Agreements:

a) This Agreement overrides all prior written and oral communications regarding the Service and sets out the entire agreement between
VentureslIn and you, the Customer.

No Waiver:

a) Any failure by either party to exercise an option or right conferred by this Agreement shall not of itself constitute or be deemed a waiver of
such option or right.

Severability:

a) If any provision in this Agreement is declared void or unenforceable by any judicial or administrative authority this shall not nullify the
remaining provisions of this Agreement which shall remain in full force and effect.

Law:

a) This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida and the parties agree to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of
the Court of Hillsborough County, Florida in connection with any legal actions hereunder.

General:

a) Should you have any questions concerning this Agreement, or if you desire to contact Ventureslin for any reason, please write:
Venturesin.com, Inc., 9560 West Linebaugh Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33626.

| agree to the terms and conditions of this Hosting Agreement.
Customer Signature

Organization/Community/CDD/HOA

Print Name and Title Sign Date



EXHIBIT 7.




UNION PARK EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

(Assessment Area Two)

SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY REPORT
FOR THE ISSUANCE OF

$5,275,000 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2019A-1
AND

$5,055,000 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES
2019A-2

April 16, 2019

Prepared by
DPFG Management & Consulting LLC
250 International Parkway
Lake Mary, FL



UNION PARK EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY REPORT

Table of Contents

A. Purpose of this REPOTT......cc.uiieiiiieiieceeeee et e e e e e 4
B. Master AsSeSSMENt ALLOCATION. ......c.eeririiiriiiieieeieeeee ettt 4
C. Purpose of the District and Issuer information .............ccceeveeeeiierieeiienieeiesee e 4
DIEVEIOPIMENL ...ttt ettt ettt et e sate e teeesbeeseeenbeenseeenbeenseeenseenneenne 4
Capital Improvement PIan ...........cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiecece et 5
Prior Bonds and ASSESSIMENLS .......c..eeuiruieriirieriieieeiiesteeie ettt sttt st sttt sbe et saeesbeenneas 5
D. Overall Financing Plan and Purpose of the Series 2019 Bond Issuance ............ccccceuueen..e. 6
E. Designation Of ASSESSMENT ATCAS.........eeruieriieriieriieetieeieesteeseeesteesteebeeseteebeesaeeebeeseeesseens 7
Development in AssesSmMent AT€a TWO ....c..ooccuiiiiiiiiiiii ettt e eave e e 8
F. Series 2019 Assessments and Assessable Property ........ccccoeeveriiniiiienicnenicnicneceneee, 8
G. Assessment Reallocation and True-Up.......ccoeviieiieiieiiiienieeicece e 9
H.  Allocation of benefits of asSESSMENtS .........cevueriirieriiiiiirieieeee e 10
ASSESSMENT STANAATA ..ottt 10
AssessmMent MethOAOIOZY .......coouiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeie et e beesiaeebeessseensaens 10
These Special Benefits and Allocation of ASSESSMENTS .......cc.eeeeeriiieriieriiienieeiierie e 11
Exemptions and non-Benefitted Property..........ccceviiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeee e 11
L Rate and Method of APPOTrtIONMENt .........c..eeeiiieeeiieeeiie ettt eeeeaeeeeaee e 11
J. Preliminary Assessment Roll and Collection ...........cccceeieveeiiiniiniiiicnicniiicnecieeeceeee 12
K. CONCIUSION ..ttt ettt e sbe e st e bt e et e nbeesateenbee e 12
N LSTe 1 B 2153 T L R SRSRR 12
ASSESSMENT APPOTLIONIMENILE ...vvveeeiiieeeiieeeieeeeieeesteeesteeessreeeeseeesseeassneessseeessseeessseesnssessnsseesnnns 12
Reasonableness of Assessment APPOrtIONMENL.........cc.eeervieerieeerieeerieeeireesieeenneeesreeenereeennns 12
BESt INTETEST ... 13
L. Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Assessment ..........cccceceeververieneeniennenne. 14
M.  Preliminary Sources and USES .........ccoceerueriiriiiiinieniiiieritesie ettt 21
N. Preliminary Assessment ROIL...........coiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiieceeee e 22
0. Description and SKECH .........ooiiriiiiiiiiiiiie s 23
P. Allocation of Public Improvements Costs, Proposed Debt ..........ccceeveiieviiieniiieiniiieiiens 30
Q. Concept Plan and Bond Map .......ccoeeeiiiiiiiieeieeceeeeeee et 31

Page 2 of 31



List of Tables

Table 1 — Acreage and Proposed Lot Count for the 2017 Assessment Areas .........cccceeevevueeruennnene 6
Table 2 — Series 2019 BONd S1ZING.......ccueiiiiiiiiiiieiiecieeiee ettt ee e e saesbeesaee e 7
Table 3 — Series 2019 Bond Amounts Per Lot........cccueeiieiieiiienieiiiceeeiceee et 7
Table 4 —2019 Assessable Property - Acreage and Proposed Lot Count ..........cccceeeevveenieeennennne. 8
Table 5 - Overview of 2019 Assessable Property, Series 2019 Assessments and Bonds .............. 8
Table 6 - Estimated Special Assessment Debt Service Requirement ............ccccceeeveviieiiienneennnnn. 16

Table 7 - Series 2019 A-1 Bonds: Assigned ERU and District Debt for Assessment Area Two. 16

Table 8 - Series 2019 A-2 Bonds: Assigned ERU and District Debt for Assessment Area Two. 17

Table 9 - District Debt ALIOCALION .......cccuiiiiiiiiieiieei et 17
Table 10 - Annual Assessment ALLOCAtION. ........cc.ceiiuiiiiiiiiiiie et 18
Table 11 - Debt Per ERU .......oooiiiiieiieciieieeeee ettt ettt eveesaeeesbeessneennaens 19
Table 12 - Allocation of Master Public Improvement Costs for Assessment Area Two ............. 30
Table 13 — Comparison of Total Series 2019 Bond Debt with PIC per Lot.........ccccoceeeiienirnnnenn. 30

Page 3 of 31



A. PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

This Second Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report (the “Report’) describes and
explains the Series 2019A-1 Assessments and Series 2019A-2 Assessments related to Assessment
Area Two, (collectively, the “Series 2019 Assessments”) assigned and pledged in connection with
the Union Park East Community Development District's (the “District™) issuance of the

e $5,275,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A-1; and
e $5,055,000 Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2019A-2

Altogether, the "Series 2019 Bonds".
B. MASTER ASSESSMENT ALLOCATION

This Report supplements the District’s Master Assessment Methodology Report, dated January 3,
2017 (the “Master Methodology Report”). The District has previously conducted assessment
proceedings and levied a master special assessment lien over all real property within the District
in accordance with the Master Methodology Report, with the understanding that such lien would
become "activated" in conjunction with any bonds issued by the District in the future and in
connection with the financing of the District’s capital improvement plan and upon adoption of a
supplemental assessment methodology report. Accordingly, this Report is intended to supplement
the Master Methodology Report, which remains in full force and effect. This Report and the Master
Methodology Report shall be construed to the maximum extent possible to give full force and
effect to the provisions of each report.

C. PURPOSE OF THE DISTRICT AND ISSUER INFORMATION

The District is an independent unit of special purpose local government of the State of Florida,
created and established in accordance with Uniform Community Development District Act of
1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (the “Act”), as amended, and by Ordinance No. 16-28
approved by Pasco County, enacted October 11, 2016. The District was created for the purpose of
delivering certain community development services and facilities within its jurisdiction, including
the design, acquisition and/or construction of certain public infrastructure improvements
consisting of, but not limited to, roadways, storm water management, water supply, sewer and
wastewater management, landscape/hardscape, community amenities, professional services, and
permitting pursuant to the Act. The District has the power to issue bonds to fund public
improvements.

Development

The District encompasses approximately 331.5 acres, and is planned for approximately 900 total
residential units. The lands within the District are located entirely within the jurisdictional

Page 4 of 31



boundaries of Pasco County and such lands are also part of a master planned residential community
known as Union Park (the "Development"). The Development consists of 580 total acres with
zoning approval for 1,800 residential units. The western 249 acre portion of the Development has
been under development and is part of the Union Park Community Development District.

Capital Improvement Plan

Certain public infrastructure is needed in order to for property within the District to be developed.
The District Engineer in the Report of the District Engineer, dated December 20, 2016, (the
“Master Engineer’s Report”) has identified certain public, master and subdivision infrastructure
improvements necessary for development of production lots.

In order to finance portions of the infrastructure improvements, the District plans to issue the Series
2019 Bonds, to designate assessment areas and assign special assessments to repay these bonds,
including interest, and other financing costs to certain real property within the District as described
herein. The Series 2019 Bonds are being issued to fund portion of the capital improvements
planned for Assessment Area Two, which is comprised of approximately 342 production lots in
Phases 7B, 8B, 8C, and 8D (the “Series 2019 Area Two Project”), as described in the Report of
the District Engineer, dated April 9, 2019 (the “2019 Engineer’s Report”).

Prior Bonds and Assessments

In June 2017, the District issued its $6,010,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series
2017A-1 (Assessment Area One) (the "Series 2017A-1 Bonds"), its $6,000,000 Capital
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A-2 (Assessment Area One) (the "Series 2017A-2
Bonds"), and its $4,325,000 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A-3 (Assessment
Area Two) (the "Series 2017A-3 Bonds") (collectively, the “Series 2017 Bonds™). The Series
2017 Bonds are to be repaid from special assessments assigned on only those units planned within
each respective 2017 Assessment Area.

Specifically, the District pledged to repay the Series 2017 Bonds with Series 2017A-1
Assessments, Series 2017A-2 Assessments and Series 2017A-3 Assessments, respectively
(collectively the “Series 2017 Assessments”) in order to fund a portion of the District’s overall
capital improvement plan, as described in the Report of the District Engineer, dated May 19, 2017
necessary to service the first construction phase, which was contemplated to be comprised of 478
lots! in Assessment Area One (comprised of Phases 6, 6D-E, 7A, 7C, 7D&E, 8A and 8A-1) in the
production lots section of the Development and a portion of the second construction phase, which
was contemplated to be comprised of 370 lots? in Assessment Area Two (comprised of Phases 7B,

! Now planned for 503 lots.
2 Now planned for 342 lots.

Page 5 of 31



8B, 8C and 8D). The table below shows an overview of the 2017 Assessment Areas and associated
acreage.

Table 1 — Acreage and Proposed Lot Count for the 2017 Assessment Areas

Assessment Area One Assessment Area Two

Initially comprised of 142.33 gross acres, | Initially comprised of 157.98 gross
assessments securing the Series 2017A-1 Bonds will | acres, assessments securing the Series
be levied and assigned to 503 platted lots (which was | 2017A-3 Bonds will be levied on the
previously planned for 478 lots); and assessments | first 342 lots (was previously planned
securing the Series 2017A-2 Bonds will be levied, | for 370 lots), which are expected to
assigned to, and absorbed by the first 478 platted lots, | comprise Phases 7B, 8B, 8C and 8D.
which are expected to comprise construction Phases
6, 6D-E, 7A, 7C, 7TD&E, 8A and 8A-1.

D. OVERALL FINANCING PLAN AND PURPOSE OF THE SERIES 2019 BOND
ISSUANCE

The Series 2019 Bonds in the aggregate are being issued for the primary purpose of funding the
costs to complete the construction of public infrastructure necessary for development of Phases
7B, 8B, 8C, and 8D comprising a total of 342 lots of the Development, redeem the outstanding
Series 2017A-3, and refinance the portion of the Series 2017 Project affiliated with the Series
2017A-3.

Specifically, the proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds will be used to provide funds to (i) fund debt
service reserve accounts for the Series 2019 Bonds, (i1) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2019
Bonds, (ii1) pay capitalized interest, and (iv) payoff all outstanding Capital Improvement Revenue
Bonds, Series 2017A-3, which are currently payable and secured by the corresponding Series
2017A-3 Assessments. The Series 2019 Bonds will be secured by and payable from Series 2019
Assessments, which reflect the maximum annual assessment level permitted pursuant to certain
builder contracts.

Based on the foregoing determinations, the size of the Series 2019 Bonds is $10,330,000 payable
and secured by the Series 2019 Assessments. The Developer is anticipating prepaying a portion of
the Series 2019 Assessments upon lot closings to homebuilders in accordance with the maximum
annual assessment levels set in the builder contracts (the "Paydown"). The Developer is not
required to make any pay down prepayments on the Series 2019 Assessments. However, the
Developer anticipates making prepayments comprising the total amount of $5,055,000. The
anticipated Paydown portion of the Series 2019 Bond is bundled into one large maturity consisting
of the Series 2019A-2 Bonds. After Paydown, the remaining portion of the Series 2019 Bonds is
anticipated to consist of the Series 2019A-1 Bonds. The "after paydown" amount shown as the

Page 6 of 31



Series 2019A-1 Bonds with respect to such lots represents the Developer's current pay down
projection, which is subject to change. A sources and uses table of the bond financing is enclosed
herein in the Appendix. The Tables below set forth the proposed sizing and ERU based allocation
among lot types of the Series 2019 Bonds, and par amounts per lot, both before and after the

Paydown, per lot type.

Table 2 — Series 2019 Bond Sizing

Series 2019A-2 Series 2019A-1

(Anticipated (Series 2019

Lot Assigned Total Series 2019 Paydown Bonds After
Type Lots ERU ERU % ERU Bond Size Portion) Paydown)
TH 102 0.47 47.94 17.49% | $1,806,450 $929,302 $877,148
40 103 0.80 82.40 30.06% | $3,104,954 $1,502,907 $1,602,047
50 103 1.00 | 103.00 37.57% | $3,881,192 $1,878,633 $2,002,559
60 34 1.20 40.80 14.88% | $1,537,404 $744,158 $793,247
Total 342 274.14 | 100.00% | $10,330,000 $5,055,000 $5,275,000

Table 3 — Series 2019 Bond Amounts per Lot

Series 2019 Series 2019A-2 Series 2019A-1
Lot Width | Bond Size | (Anticipated Paydown Portion) | (Series 2019 Bond After Paydown)
TH $17,710 $9,111 $8,599
40 $30,145 $14,591 $15,554
50 $37,681 $18,239 $19,442
60 $45,218 $21,887 $23,331

Each fiscal year, the District will collect the Series 2019 Assessments on all 2019 Assessable
Property (described below), apportioned proportionately to the 2019 Assessable Property until the
aggregate amount of the Series 2019 Assessments has satisfied all of the debt service requirements
for the Series 2019 Bonds.

E. DESIGNATION OF ASSESSMENT AREAS

As described in the Master Methodology Report, it is expected that the District will issue multiple
series of bonds secured by special assessments as development advances within the District.
Previously, the District issued its Series 2017 Bonds to fund improvements related to two
assessment areas in the District, namely “Assessment Area One” and “Assessment Area Two”
(collectively the “2017 Assessment Areas’), which accommodates and aligns the bond financing
with the Series 2017 Assessment Area One Project, and the Series 2017 Assessment Area Two
Project, respectively, (collectively the “Series 2017 Project”). However, the Series 2019 Bonds
are expected to be repaid from special assessments assigned on only those units planned within
Assessment Area Two, and reflect the payoff of the Series 2017A-3 Bonds and refinancing of the
portion of the Series 2017 Project associated with Assessment Area Two.

Page 7 of 31



Development in Assessment Area Two

At buildout, Assessment Area Two is anticipated to contain a total of 342 single family residential
and townhome lots. At this point, the Series 2019 Area Two Project is planned to include certain
public Master Improvements and Subdivision Improvements, including District land, roads, water
management and control, landscaping, hardscape, irrigation, water supply, sewer and wastewater
management, professional services, and permitting. Only portions of the Master Improvements
within Assessment Area Two were financed with proceeds from the Series 2017A-3 Bonds to date.
The total cost of the Series 2019 Area Two Project has been estimated to be approximately
$7.892 million. Refer to the 2019 Engineer’s Report for further details on the relevant public
improvements and community facilities. The table below shows an overview of the Assessment
Area Two and associated lot count and acreage.

Table 4 —2019 Assessable Property - Acreage and Proposed Lot Count

Assessment Area Two

Initially comprised of 152.62 gross acres, assessments securing the Series 2019 Bonds are
anticipated to attach to 342 planned lots, which are expected to comprise Phases 7B, 8B, 8C
and 8D.

F. SERIES 2019 ASSESSMENTS AND ASSESSABLE PROPERTY

The District will acquire or construct a portion of the Series 2019 Area Two Project, utilizing
developer contributions, which are more specifically described in the 2019 Engineer’s Report (the
“Developer Contributions”), and proceeds from the Series 2019 Bonds, which are secured by the
Series 2019 Assessments. The benefits related to the Assessable Property in Assessment Area Two
are the completed public infrastructure with estimated costs to complete in the amount of $7.892
million. The Developer has spent approximately $1,070,000 to fund public improvements in the
CIP to date. The table below shows the special assessments levied and collected on certain
assessable land securing the Series 2019 Bonds.

Table S - Overview of 2019 Assessable Property, Series 2019 Assessments and Bonds

A bl
jesmae Benefiting From Is Subject To Securing
Property
Assessment Master Improvements of the Series Series 2019A-1 and Series 2019A-1
Area Two 2017 Assessment Area Two Project, Series 2019A-2 and Series 2019A-
and Series 2019 Area Two Project Assessments 2 Bonds

Page 8 of 31



Prior to the 2019 Assessable Property becoming Developed Property, the Series 2019 Assessments
will be allocated to the 2019 Assessable Property on an equal acreage basis. Upon recordation of
a plat map and completion of Lot development, the Series 2019 Assessments will be allocated to
each Lot based on its assigned ERU as described herein.

G. ASSESSMENT REALLOCATION AND TRUE-UP

As of this date, the Developer (defined below) has informed the District that it plans to construct
a total of 342 lots in connection with the Series 2019 Area Two Project, which represents a total
of 274.14 ERUs, within Assessment Area Two. As development occurs, it is possible that the
number of lots and lot mix may change. In order to ensure that the Series 2019 Assessment
allocation is maintained in accordance with the methodology specified by this report, a true-up
analysis may be necessary (“True-Up Analysis”).

This True-Up Analysis is utilized to ensure that the principal amount of the Series 2019
Assessments on a per lot and per acre basis never exceeds the initially allocated amount as
contemplated in the assessment methodology described herein. In accordance with the True-Up
Agreement to be entered into by the Developer and the District at the time of issuance of the Series
2019 Bonds, prior to the time a parcel within the District is platted and developed, or ownership is
transferred by the Developer to any other entity or person with a specific number of assessable
units allocated thereto, the True-Up Analysis will be conducted in accordance with the assessment
methodology set forth herein and in the True-Up Agreement. As the lands within the District are
developed, the allocation of the amounts assessed to and constituting a lien upon the 2019
Assessable Property will be calculated based upon certain density assumptions, which assumptions
were provided by the Developer.

At such time as acreage is contained within a proposed plat, or a deed or assignment agreement
between the Developer and a transferee that specifies the residential Lots or entitlements thereto
being transferred to such transferee (“Entitlement Transfer Document”), the Developer agrees
that such proposed plat or Entitlement Transfer Document shall be presented to the District in
accordance with the terms of the True-Up Agreement. The District will allocate the Series 2019
Assessments to the 2019 Assessable Property reflected in such plat or Entitlement Transfer
Document in accordance with the applicable land use classifications, and the remaining 2019
Assessable Property within the District, and such reallocation will be recorded in the District’s lien
book. This True-Up Analysis will ensure that Series 2019 Bond debt does not accumulate
disproportionately on Undeveloped Property within the District. In the event that the density
assumptions upon which this report is based change over time as determined by any True-Up
Analysis such that fewer ERUs are being developed within the District than are contemplated by
this report, the True-Up Analysis will determine the amount required to be paid by the Developer
to the District in order to satisfy, in whole or in part, the Series 2019 Assessments and ensure that
the Series 2019 Assessments continue to be allocated ratably against the actual density within the

Page 9 of 31



District in accordance with the methodology set forth in this report (the “True-Up Obligation”).
The True-Up Agreement shall further set forth the terms associated with the Developer’s
satisfaction of the True-Up Obligation.

H. ALLOCATION OF BENEFITS OF ASSESSMENTS

Assessment Standard

Under Florida law, a valid special assessment that is made pursuant to District legislative authority
requires that the property assessed must (1) derive a direct and special benefit from the
improvement or service provided and (2) that the assessment must be fairly and reasonably
apportioned among properties that receive the special benefits.

Section 170.02, Florida Statutes, states “Special assessments against property deemed to be
benefited by local improvements, as provided for in sec. 170.01, shall be assessed upon the
property specially benefited by the improvement in proportion to the benefits to be derived
therefrom, said special benefits to be determined and prorated according to the foot frontage of the
respective properties specially benefited by said improvement, or by such other method as the
governing body of the municipality may prescribe.”

The ERU allocation approach is a generally recognized and commonly approved method of
proportionally spreading assessments over benefited properties for special assessments levied by
community development districts. Although the general public outside the District will benefit
from the Series 2019 Area Two Project, such benefits are incidental. The facilities in the Series
2019 Area Two Project meet the needs of the developed property within the District, as well as
provide benefit to all residential property within the District. The property owners within the
District are therefore receiving special benefits not received by those outside the boundaries, and
direct and cumulative benefits accrue mainly to residents.

Assessment Methodology

This benefit and allocation approach is based on the principle that dwelling units on a similar size
lot will receive a relatively equal and direct benefit from the Series 2019 Area Two Project. The
direct benefits from these improvements include increased use, enjoyment and increased property
values to all residential properties that benefit from each public improvement system and function.

An assessment methodology based on ERUs provides a way to quantify the benefit that different
lot sizes and land use types receive from public improvements in terms of their equivalence to a
single-family residential dwelling unit on a fifty-foot wide lot, which is defined as 1.0 ERU. Under
the ERU model, the District allocates assessments on platted property proportionately based on lot
size as indicated on the subject recorded plat map. Assessments on undeveloped property (e.g.,
property without recorded subdivision plat map) in each Assessment Area are allocated
proportionately based on acreage basis.

Page 10 of 31



These Special Benefits and Allocation of Assessments

In the present case, the financing program will enable the District to provide public improvements
to various phases of development within the District. Such improvements will provide direct
benefit for the utilization of this property, will substantially enhance the use and enjoyment of the
benefited residential properties, and will increase the value and marketability of the benefited
residential properties. These benefits flow proportionately over all benefited properties. The
District will apply the assessment methodology to the financing program relating to the Series
2019 Area Two Project. In Assessment Area Two, a ranking and finding of 1.0 ERU per residential
unit on a fifty-foot lot applies, and for all other lots an ERU value will be assigned based on the
lot size in proportion to a fifty-foot-wide lot, which is defined as 1.0 ERU.

Exemptions and non-Benefitted Property

No Special Assessment shall be assigned or attached to public property, property owner
association Property, or community amenities and facilities. These properties are treated as
ancillary uses as a whole, because they will serve and benefit the primary residential development.
According to Section 193.0235 (Ad valorem taxes and non-ad valorem assessments against
subdivision property), Florida Statutes, special assessments may not be assessed separately against
common elements utilized exclusively for the benefit of lot owners within the subdivision,
regardless of ownership. Common elements include the following:

a. Subdivision property not included within lots constituting inventory for the developer
which are intended to be conveyed or have been conveyed into private ownership.

b. An easement through the subdivision property, not including the property described in
paragraph (a), which has been dedicated to the public or retained for the benefit of the
subdivision.

c. Any other part of the subdivision which has been designated on the plat or is required to

be designated on the site plan as a drainage pond, or detention or retention pond, for the

exclusive benefit of the subdivision.

d. Property located within the same county as the subdivision and used for at least 10 years

exclusively for the benefit of lot owners within the subdivision.

I. RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT

A rate and method of apportionment of Series 2019 Assessments is attached in the Appendix.

Page 11 of 31



J. PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL AND COLLECTION

A Preliminary Assessment Roll is attached in the Appendix. The District expects to place the Series
2019A-1 Assessments for the Series 2019A-1 Bonds on the Pasco County tax roll for collection
upon the platting of lots. Series 2019A-2 Assessments are expected to be paid off as lots are sold
to home builders and will be collected directly by the District.

K. CONCLUSION

The acquisition and construction of the Series 2019 Area Two Project using Series 2019 Bond
proceeds will be utilized for common District purposes. The Series 2019 Assessments will be
levied over all 2019 Assessable Property on a fair and equitable basis as described herein. The
2019 Assessable Property will receive benefits in excess of the allocated Series 2019 Assessments.
Accordingly, this is an appropriate District project that will significantly benefit 2019 Assessable
Property and enhance the District.

Special Benefit

The Series 2019 Area Two Project will provide special benefit to parcels within the District. The
parcels will receive special benefit because the subject Master and Subdivision Improvements
deliver interconnected structural improvement elements that provide a framework that supports
and adds to the entire development. The Master and Subdivision Improvements yield benefits to
parcel owners in terms of meeting development needs and increasing property values.

Assessment Apportionment

The Series 2019 Assessments are fairly and equally apportioned over all the 2019 Assessable
Property. The benefits are quantified and assigned to parcels based on lot size since larger lot areas
consume proportionately greater benefits than smaller lots from the Master and Subdivision
Improvements. The CDD has assigned proxy values to the various expected lot sizes on the basis
that a fifty-foot wide lot receives the value of 1.0 ERU; accordingly, for example, a sixty-foot wide
lot receives the value of 1.2 ERU.

Reasonableness of Assessment Apportionment

It is reasonable, proper and just to assess the costs of the Master and Subdivision Improvements
against lands in the District. As a result of these Improvements, properties in the District receive
special benefit and increase in value. Based on the premise that the District’s Improvements make
the properties more valuable, in return it is reasonable for the District to levy the Series 2019
Assessments against the 2019 Assessable Property within the District. The benefits will be equal
to or in excess of the Series 2019 Assessments thereon when allocated.

Page 12 of 31



Best Interest

The District provides for delivering the Master and Subdivision Improvements in a timely, orderly,
and efficient manner. It can economically and efficiently provide the amount and quality of
services required by the public. The District provides a financing mechanism to (i) fund Master
and Subdivision Improvements at a relatively low cost of capital, and (ii) on a timely, “pay for
itself” type basis. The exercise by the District of its powers is consistent with applicable with state
law and it is in the best interest of the District.

Page 13 of 31



L. RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT

A Series 2019 Assessment as hereinafter defined shall be levied on all 2019 Assessable Property
within the Union Park East Community Development District and collected each fiscal year
commencing fiscal year 2019 in an amount determined by the District through the application of
this rate and method of apportionment as described below. All of the real property within the
District, unless exempted by law or the provisions hereof, shall be assessed for the purposes, to
the extent and in the manner herein provided.

A. DEFINITIONS:
The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

“Administrative Expenses” means any actual or reasonably estimated expenses of the
CDD to carry out the administration of the District related to the determination of the
amount of the Special Assessments, the collection of Special Assessments, and costs
otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized purposes of the District.

“Assessment Area One” means 503 Lots platted within construction phases 6, 6D-E, 7,
8A, and 8A1.

“Assessment Area Two” means the 342 remaining Lots platted within remaining Phases
7B, 8B, 8C and 8D.

""2019 Assessable Property" means all of the Tax Parcels comprising Phases 7B, 8B, 8C
and 8D of the District that are not exempt from the Special Assessment pursuant to law.
Refer to the Appendix, Preliminary Assessment Roll.

“District Debt” or “Debt” means any of the Series 2019 Bonds or other debt issued by
the District, which are secured by the levy of Special Assessments of the District. As used
herein, Debt may refer to the principal (present value) of the Special Assessments levied
on property within the District, which corresponds to a like amount of Bond indebtedness.

"Developed Property' means all property within the District which is legally subdivided
by a recorded subdivision plat into a Lot, has legal entitlements for development of a
residential structure thereon, has been developed with a fine grade level pad contiguous to
an asphalt paved road with utility laterals stubbed at the Lot, and as to which a building
permit and certificate of occupancy for a residential structure maybe issued by Pasco
County.

“Developer” means Goldenranch Property, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
its successors and assignees.

Page 14 of 31



“ERU” means a way to quantify different land use types in terms of their equivalence to a
fifty-foot (50”) wide Lot, which is defined as 1.0 ERU.

"Fiscal Year' means the period starting October 1 and ending on the following September
30.

“Indenture” means the Master Trust Indenture for Union Park East Community
Development District, the Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture and the Fifth Supplemental
Indenture or any other collectively or as applicable as the context may require.

"Lot" means an individual residential lot, identified and numbered on a recorded final
subdivision map as to which a building permit may be issued by Pasco County for
construction of a residential unit without further subdivision of the Lot and for which no
further subdivision of the Lot is anticipated and which qualifies as Developed Property.

“Property Owner Association Property'" means any property within the District
boundaries that is owned by, or irrevocably dedicated as indicated in an instrument
recorded with the County Recorder to, a property owner association, including any master
or sub-association.

"Public Property' means any property within the District boundaries that is, at the time
of the CDD formation, expected to be used for any public purpose and is or will be owned
by or dedicated to the federal government, the State, the County, the District or any other
public agency.

"Single Family Unit” or “Unit" means each separate residential dwelling unit that
comprises an independent facility capable of conveyance or rental separate from adjacent
residential dwelling units.

"Series 2019 Assessment' means the special assessment levied pursuant to the provisions
of Sections C and D below in each Fiscal Year on each parcel of Developed Property and
Undeveloped Property comprising the 2019 Assessable Property in the District to fund the
Special Assessment Requirement.

“Special Assessment Requirement” means that amount determined by the District’s
Board of Supervisors that is required in any Fiscal Year to pay regularly scheduled Debt
service for the calendar year, which commences in such Fiscal Year, on the outstanding
District Debt.

"Tax Parcel" means a Lot or parcel identified by the Pasco County Property Appraiser as
a separate parcel for taxation purposes designated by a folio or parcel identification
number.

Page 15 of 31



"Undeveloped Property' means, for each Fiscal Year, all 2019 Assessable Property not
constituting Developed Property.

B. ASSIGNMENT TO LAND USE CATEGORIES AND OF ERU:

Each Fiscal Year using the definitions above, all 2019 Assessable Property shall be classified as
Developed Property or Undeveloped Property, and shall be subject to Series 2019 Assessment
pursuant to Sections C and D below.

C. ANNUAL SERIES 2019 ASSESSMENT FOR DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENT
The estimated annual Special Assessment Requirement is presented in the table below.

Table 6 - Estimated Special Assessment Debt Service Requirement

Amount (excl. County charges and early
payment discount)

Series 2019A-1 Bonds (principal and interest) $352,710

Series 2019A-2 Bonds (annual interest only) $278,025

Special Assessment Requirement

D. SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RATE

1. Developed Property
a) Assigned ERU and Bond Par Amount Allocation

The ERU for each 50° Lot that is classified as Developed Property shall be 1.0. For each Bond
series, the District Debt principal amount is determined in the tables below.

Table 7 - Series 2019A-1 Bonds: Assigned ERU and District Debt for Assessment Area Two

Total Par Annual Annual

Lot Type Total Lots Amount Par/Lot Assmt. Assmt./Lot

TH 102 $877,148 $8,599 $58,650 $575

40 103 $1,602,047 $15,554 $107,120 $1,040

50 103 $2,002,559 $19,442 $133,900 $1,300

60 34 $793,247 $23,331 $53,040 $1,560
Total 342 $5,275,000 $352,710

Page 16 of 31



Table 8 - Series 2019A-2 Bonds: Assigned ERU and District Debt for Assessment Area Two

Total Par Annual Annual

Lot Type Total Lots Amount Par/Lot Assmt. Assmt./Lot

TH 102 $929,302 $9,111 $51,112 $501

40 103 $1,502,907 $14,591 $82,660 $803

50 103 $1,878,633 $18,239 $103,325 $1,003

60 34 $744,158 $21,887 $40,929 $1,204
Total 342 $5,055,000 $278,025

2. Undeveloped Property

Prior to the property, or portion thereof, becoming Developed Property, the Special Assessments
and Debt will be allocated to each property, as described by Property Tax Appraiser parcel
information or legal description, based on acreage. Upon recordation of a subdivision plat map,
the Lot sizes are determinable, therefore, upon any portion of the property becoming Developed
Property, the Special Assessments are then levied on the individual Lots based on Lot size by
assigning ERUs to each Lot at the applicable Special Assessment rates for Developed Property
described above.

a) District Debt Allocation

The District Debt is allocated per acre based on ERU assignment and Adjustments. The District
Debt principal amount is determined in the table below.

Table 9 - District Debt Allocation

Bond Series Total Lots Total Debt | Total Acreage (Ac) Total Debt/Ac
Series 2019A-1 342 $5,275,000 152.62 $34,563
Series 2019A-2 342 $5,055,000 152.62 $33,121
Total $10,330,000

Page 17 of 31




b) Assigned Annual Special Assessment Rate

In the current Fiscal Year, all Tax Parcels are classified as Undeveloped Property
within the District. Based on the ERU assignment, the assigned Special Assessment
rate for Undeveloped Property within the District is determined in the table below.

Table 10 - Annual Assessment Allocation®

Bond Series Total Lots Annual Assessment Total Acreage Annual Assmt. /

(Ac) Ac
Series 2019A-1 342 $352,710 152.62 $2,311
Series 2019A-2 342 $278,025 152.62 $1,822
Total $630,735

Please refer to the Appendix for details on property classification and land size.

3. Exemptions
No Special Assessment shall be levied on Public Property and Property Owner Association
Property.

E. METHOD OF APPROTIONMENT OF THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT

Commencing with the current Fiscal Year and for each following Fiscal Year, the District shall
levy the Series 2019 Assessments as follows:

First (Developed Property, All Phases): The Series 2019 Assessments shall be levied
proportionately on each Tax Parcel of Developed Property in an amount at the applicable
assigned Series 2019 Assessment rate as determined pursuant to Section D.1.

Second (Undeveloped Property, All Phases): If additional monies are needed to satisfy the
Special Assessment Requirement after the first step has been completed, the Series 2019
Assessment shall be levied proportionally on each Tax Parcel of Undeveloped Property at
the assigned Series 2019 Assessment rate for Undeveloped Property.

F. PROCESS OF ASSESSMENT REALLOCATION AND TRUE UP

The Series 2019 Assessments will be initially allocated in accordance with this methodology. All
changes in the number of Lots and Lot mix within parcels will be permitted as long as the per-
ERU assessment or the per acre assessment, as applicable, in the remaining Undeveloped Property
does not exceed the initial level as established in the methodology. Any changes which increase

3 Represents interest only for the Series 2019A-2 Bonds.

Page 18 of 31



the per-ERU assessments or the per acre assessments, as applicable, above the initial level will
require a True-Up Payment by the Developer. Conversely, any changes that decrease the per-ERU
assessments below the initial level will result in an automatic decrease in the per-ERU assessment
in the remaining Undeveloped Property. The per-ERU assessments are presented in the following
table.

Table 11 - Debt per ERU

Total

B i Total Unit Total ER Total Debt
ond Series otal Units ota U otal Deb Debt/ERU
Series 2019A-1 342 274.14 $5,275,000 $19,242
Series 2019A-2 342 274.14 $5,055,000 $18,439

The land use and numbers of ERUs within each parcel will be certified by the Developer and the
District Engineer. Refer to Appendix for a preliminary assessment roll presenting the Special
Assessment levied for Fiscal Year 2019 in accordance with the method of apportionment described
above.

H. PREPAYMENT
The following definition applies to this Section H.

“Outstanding District Debt” means previously issued Bonds secured by the levy of Special
Assessments, which remain outstanding, from time to time, excluding Bonds to be redeemed at a
later date with the proceeds of prior prepayments.

The Special Assessment obligation of a Tax Parcel may be prepaid in full, or in part, and the
obligation of the Tax Parcel to pay the Special Assessment permanently, or partially, satisfied;
provided that a prepayment may be made only if there are no delinquent Special Assessments with
respect to such Tax Parcel at time of prepayment. The Special Assessment Prepayment amount is
calculated as follows:

Outstanding District Debt amount allocated to the subject Tax Parcel

Plus: Accrued interest on principal amount to be prepaid, calculated to next interest
payment date, which shall occur at least 45 days prior to the tender of the prepayment

Less: Allocable portion of Capitalized Interest, if any remains at time of the prepayment

Total: Equals Prepayment Amount (PA)

Page 19 of 31



Plus: Reasonable administrative fees and expenses related to lien release, calculation and recordation
as determined by the District manager (A)

Partial Prepayment (PP) is calculated as follows:

PP=(PA *F)+A

The term F means the percent by which the owner of the Tax Parcel is partially prepaying the
Special Assessment. With respect to a partial prepayment, the District manager shall indicate in
the District records that there has been a partial prepayment and that a portion of the Special
Assessment equal to (1.00 minus F) of the remaining Special Assessment shall continue to be
authorized to be levied on such Tax Parcel pursuant to Section D.

Page 20 of 31



M. PRELIMINARY SOURCES AND USES

Sources Series 2019A-1 Series 2019A-2 Total

Par Amount $5,275,000 $5,055,000 $10,330,000

Original Issue Discount
5,275,000 5,055,000 10,330,000

Other Sources of Funds:
Transfer of 2017A-3 DSRF 0 248,688 248,688
Transfer of 2017A-3 Acq/Cont. 0 1,520 1,520
Transfer of 2017A-3 Rev. 0 2,400 2,400
0 252,607 252,607
5,275,000 5,307,607 10,582,607

Uses

Net Construction Proceeds $4,375,009 $161,170 $4,536,178
Refunding Escrow Deposit 0 4,325,000 4,325,000

Debt Service Reserve Fund
352,710 278,025 630,735

(MADS) ’ ’

Capitalized Interest 415,406 417,038 832,444

(18 mos.)

Cost of Issuance
131,875 126,375 258,250

(2.5%) ’ ’

$5,275,000 $5,307,607 $10,582,607

Source: FMS Bonds, prepared by DBC Finance,

Page 21 of 31



N. PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL

Annual
Assessment Total Acre District Debt | Debt Service
Area Owner /(a) % Acre /(b) /(b)
GOLDENRANCH .
Two PROPERTY LLC 152.62 100.0% $10,330,000 $630,735
Footnotes:

(a) Estimate based on Preliminary Plans in Exhibit B of the 2019 Engineer's Report. Refer to the
Appendix for legal sketch.

(b) Total for Assessment Area Two, includes Series 2019A-1 Bonds and Series 2019A-2 Bonds.
Annual debt service excludes early payment discount and County collection charges.

Page 22 of 31




O. DESCRIPTION AND SKETCH

Figure 1 — Assessment Area Two

SKETCH & DESCRIPTION = NOT A SURVEY =
INDEX SHEET il
1
400 M —
M [
. w
0
26 25
B <3
35 36
|
UNPLATTED |
LAND | NEW RIVER
\ RO T U S .
N__n—n$v—001 | (UNRECORDED) '1
i |
, /
i
SHEET 7
H |
| ,
I,_., |
- J ]
ASSESSMENT AREA 2
SHEET 5
NEW RIVER
RANCHETTS UNIT ¢
UNPLATTED SIEEI 4 (UNRECORDED)
LAND
o PASCO COUNTY & 35 36
HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY o J 1

) = AADIL LINE
(NR) = NON-RADIAL LINE

I HAMILTON UNION PARK EAST—ASSESSMENT AREA 2

ENGINEERNG & SURVEYING, INC. PASCO COUNTY, FLORIDA
. - ; e TERTIOREEN T ey
TbA FLOMDA 35600 Logror3  rak cey 2uosess §35-26-20  ]03562.0001 4S SHOWN I e sl am

Page 23 of 31



SKETCH & DESCRIPTION = NOT A SURVEY

300

SEE SHEET 7 ki
| PORTION TRACT 27 Wi
CURVE THERE NEW RIVER RANCHETTS 3
CURVEF | RADIUS | CHORD BEARING | CHORD LENGTH | ARC LENGTH [ DELTA | UNIT 1 {UNRECORDED) L
c1 | 2500 [N 5111'02" W 17.81" 1821 | 4143'3%5" [ TR T
C2 | 2500° | N 2324'43" W 6.01° 6.03 1348°04° |
€3 | 25.00' | S BES59'29" E 5.24' 525 |zorer
c4 | 2500 | N B1'07'00" W 15.38' 1564 | 3549's8"
c5 25.00° | N BE4S'0" W 4,38 4.3¢' 1003'05"
C6 | 25.00° | N 7351'35" W 8.60' 864 | 194799
AR
152,62 + ACRES
wn
E Q §
-5 8024°21" W 36.01'(R . Ba
N[N e w2749 = B
u [ N 5303'08 “565%1'49- #| -
= cas .
Sa40° |7 NEW RIVER RANCHETTS
e =1 S UNIT 1
,\
Seaact WA sossg  o037 3|z (UNRECORDED)
7704087 W 5072 D . b
¥ s W 12830 gl
) N BYOB'4Z W 5393
N BY45'29" W 2054' f N 8622'51" W 91.37
N 733028° W 47,35~ T i
N ETSI'4° W 4625 I8
N 6343’57 W 52.79'
N 734703 W 4785~ |
N 631200" W 240 i :
S BUrSE'01° W 6165 — N 253110° W 65.78
NONFIFETT W 129,01
UNFLATTED LAND N OIE30" W 12860"
N 30r18715° w 66.97 S0INT OF
f FEGINNING
N 7Z02'49" W EB,!:&’J |
|
23
POINT OF cowENCEIBT . \ |53
SOUTHEAST CORNER SECTION 35 \J | [ =
PASCO COUNTY
SOUTH BOUNDARY SECTICN 35 o cxema 35 36 s sawisiugs s
LEGEND: HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY =
(R) = RADIAL LINE
(NR) = NCN-RADIAL LINE 2 1
UNPLATTED LAND
HAMILTON UNION PARK EAST—ASSESSMENT AREA :
ENGINEERNG & SURVEYING, INC. PASCO COUNTY, FLORIDA
- . IRy g e TeE N TEALE 1 : f TEET
5408 W. LEMON STREET TEL (813) 260-3835 5/22/2017
TAMPA, FLORIDA 33605 La§7013 FAX (813) 260—3636 §35—26—20 03562.0001 AS SHOWN Imésv. 4/10/7019 1 477

Page 24 of 31




SKETCH & DESCRIPTION

300
SEE SHEET 6 1 I
150 -
S 563329" E 104391" e . Y
dos | ~S B654'44" £ 99.78' N OUS2'45" W 11254 | T
&3 \ #
5 — N B11EED" : 0
& A N BI'G'S0T E 7539
< " 0268
¥ S 7165'29'85" £ 156.24'

N 0T40'29" E 5841

152.62

06°31°57° W 162.15'

_NEE'0S25W

186.81"
NTE23'16W

NESO6'0T'W
[ s0.88'

(“05‘&}' Ly

= NOT A SURVEY

+ ACRES

4

NBC09'54 W NEOT 3956 W

N 7949440 55, »
¢rs 244" o 500,00¢ 1l 2.5
[ sirsvorw {_cio
16.00'(R !
11600(R) SBI23'EW | @
116.02'(NR) .
carzyae ¥
59,00 (R)
UNPLATTED LAND
CURVE TASLE
CURVES | RADIUS | CHORD BEARING | CHORD LENGTH | ARC LENGTH DELTA
c7 757.20' [ S O7'02'08" W 43347 43955 3315'36"
2 75000 | S O73151° W 416.85 {24 3716'10°
C9 | 819.00' | N 0434'04" W 115.29" 115.38' 049"
(A [+] 350,00 | N BI'38'05" W 10913 109.58" 175617
it C11 | 5383 | N 751434 W 75.08° 7515 | T5e'Sst
(R} = RAD[AL LINE ' rea® v ' aiy
E“Q} = NON—RADIAL LINE €12 | 80041 | N 63'59'18" W 86.84 86,68 51309
HAMILTON UNION PARK EAST—ASSESSMENT AREA 2
ENGINEERNG & SURVEYING, INC. PASCO COUNTY, FLORIDA
E . SIoRy g et TS NOMEER TeALE TEET
3908 W. LEMON STREET TEL () 250-383s 00 o ¥ > o4 IIE T 572272017
TAMSA, FLORIDA 33605 L8F7013 FAX (m.;) 250—3636 §35—26—-20 03562.0001 AS SHOWN Rev. 4/10/70:0 1877

Page 25 of 31



SKETCH & DESCRIPTION = NOT A SURVEY 300

g

A

N el w0 -
/ @

S 040558 W 13694

S 855467 E 70.00'

N O04'05°53" E 156.94'— 0

N 2721'05" W 12153
N 564349 w sga’

LINE TARLE
SEE SHEET 5 nEf | pwEcTION | LENGTH

L1 [N 5704'05" E | 151.50° CURVE TABLE
2 | N osos2e” E | 1496 CURVEF | RADIUS | CHORD BEARING | CHORD LENGTH | ARC LENGTH | DELTA
B |N2Z5#3 E| 2978 C13 | 859.00° | N 2424'01" E E7.04 87.08' 544728
L4 | N 204347 E | 28.08' C4 | 2500 | N 183612" E 754 7.56' 1720'07"
L5 |5 551613 E | 175.00' Ci15 | 231.00" | S 1724°50° W 106.41° 107.37 | 26°37°54°

:;tnvuw. i L6 | N 30axa7" E | 2535 C16 | 301.00°| S 1724'50" W 138.65' 13091° | 263754

(NR) = NON-RADIAL LINE

HAMILTON UNION PARK EAST—ASSESSMENT AREA 2

7 ENGINEERNG & SURVEYING. INC. PASCO COUNTY, FLORIDA
i | DRk — Rt IFV!' 7227 SHEET
3405 W. LEMON STREET TEL (m3) 280-3838 [0 < AL, 5/22/2017
TAMEA, FLORIDA 33605 LEF7013 Fax (813) 260—3636 §35—26—20 03562.0001 AS SHOWN Rer 4/10/2010 6/7

Page 26 of 31



SKETCH & DESCRIPTION = NOT A SURVEY 300

—

SCALE: 1"=200"

NORTHWEST CORNER TRACT 68
N BI54'19" E 1088.51°(\R)

us
= TRACT 69
g NEW RIVER RANCHETTS UNIT 3
2 (UNRECORDED)
g
b
=
ASSESSUENT ARES 2 (-
u 152,62 + ACRES b
SOUTHWEST c
7 CORNER TRACT 69 NEW RIVSS]TRQN HETS
N BS10'37" W 11215 iy . | saysi1aW ( R
( (S TE2rie wazy S OUUIS W s000) ) 2 (UNRECORDED)
\ o |69 N B41'26" W 651.35' G e\
=75 6T4Z16" E B4.60 .
S6305'22E S 63'16'03" E 3085 N
76.65' S
S Brig4a” £ 7016 S
S 471816 E 73.2% b
§ 35°27'55° E 130.74" 2 TRAC'L 68 \\
NEW RIVER RANCHETTS UNIT 3 N
{UNRECORDED) \
\\
\
\
\
A Y
______________________ _r__________\
CURVE TASLE
CURVEJ | RADIUS | CHORD BEARING | CHORD LENGTH | ARC LENGTH | CELTA
C17 | 175007 | S 3¢52'41" W 50.94" 6128' | 200314
cig 17500° | S 6772419 W 133.94' 13744 45'00'00"
C18 | 50000 | 5 B¢22'57° W 103.26" 10345 11°51°15°
LEGEND: C20 | 550.00' | S 8508'21" W 147.08' 147.52' | 15°22'04"
[®) = RADIAL LINE
(NR) = NON—RADIAL LINE
HAMILTON UNION PARK EAST—ASSESSMENT AREA 2
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING, INC. PASCO COUNTY, FLORIDA
| T T T e . —r
3405 W. LEMON STREET TEL (813) 2503535 n 2 o IEH 572272017 =
TAMSA, FLORIDA 33608 La§7013 Fax (813) 260—3636 §35—26—20 03562.0001 AS SHOWN Rev. 4/10/2019 71

Page 27 of 31



SKETCH & DESCRIPTION = NOT A SURVEY

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

?O FORTION OF LAND LYING [N SECTION 35, TOWNSHI® 26 SCUTH, RANGE 20 EAST, PASCO COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIZED AS
LLOWS:

FOR A POINT CF REFERENCE COMMENCE AT THE SCUTHEAST CORMER OF SAID SECTION 35 AND PROCEED N GO° 07' 13 E ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY
THEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 434.83 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE N 72° 02" 49" W, LEAVING SALD BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 68,58 FEET TO A
POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 51 11" 02" W, A DISTANCE
OF 1781 FEET, THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF '8.21 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N 307 19" 15" W,
A4 DISTANCE OF 66.97 FEET TO A PCINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH
BEARS N 2F 24" 43" W, A DISTANCE OF 6,01 FEET, THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A& DISTANCE OF 503 FEET TO A POINT OF
TANGENCY; THENCE N 16" 30" 117 W, & DISTANCE OF 128.64 FEET; THENCE N 20° 18" 02" W, A DISTANCE OF 244.72 FEET; THENCE N 18" 33' 57" W, A
DISTANCE OF 129.11 FEET; THENCE N 28 31" 10" W, A DISTANCE OF 5578 FEET; THENCE N 65 38" 04" W, & DISTANCE OF 93.'5 FEET; THENCE N 56
25" 00" W, A DISTANCE OF 97.95 FEET; THENCE N 86" 22' 51" W, A DISTANCE OF 91.32 FEET; THENCE N BY 08' 42" W, A DISTANCE OF 59.93 FEET;
THENCE S 86" 59' 48" W, A DISTANCE OF 128.30 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET
AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 86" 59' 23" W, A DISTANCE OF 5.24 FEET, THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RICHT, A DISTANCE OF 5.25
FEET TU A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N BO" 58" 45" W, & DISTANCE OF 8%.37 FEET; THENCE S BO" 58" 01" W, A DISTANCE OF 61.65 FEET TO & POINT
OF CURVATURE CF A CUSVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 81" 07" 00" W, A DISTANCE OF
15.38 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC CF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 1564 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N 63' 12" 00" W, A
DISTANCE OF 2.40 FEET, THENCE N 73' 47° 03" W, A DISTANCE OF 47.85 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING
A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 68' 45' 30" W, A DISTANCE OF 4.38 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE
RICHT, A DISTANCE OF 4.39 FEET TO & POINT OF TANGENCY: THENCE N 63 43' 57" W, A DISTANCE OF 52.70 FEET; THENCE N 63' 51" 14" W, A DISTANCE
OF 46.25 FEET, THENCE N 73 30' 28" W, A DISTANCE OF 47.35 FEET; THENCE N 77 04" 08" W, A DISTANCE OF 50.72 FEET; THENCE N 85 45" 25" W, A
DISTANCE OF 20.84 FEET TO & POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTEALY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS
N 75 51 35" W, A DISTANCE OF 8.60 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SA[D CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 864 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY;
THENCE N 63 57" 40" W, A DISTANCE OF 2!.31 FEET, THENCE N 58" 40' 40" W, A DISTANCE OF 48.96 FEET; THENCE N 58" 24' 24" W, A DISTANCE OF
5560 FEET; THENCE N 57 15" 14" W, A DISTANCE OF 54.44 FEET; THENCE N 55 28 06" W, A DISTANCE OF 58.49 FEET; THENCE N 55 03 08" W, A
DISTANCE OF 56.01 FEET; THENCE N 49" 21" 447 W, A DISTANCE OF 27.49 FEET; THENCE S 80" 24" 21" W, A DISTANCE OF 36.01 FEET TO THE BECINNING
OF A NON—TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 757.20 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S 07 02 08" W, A DISTAWE OF 433.41
FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ASC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RICHT, A DISTANCE OF 439.55 FEET TO A& POINT OF CURVATURE OF A REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE
EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 750,00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S O7° 31" 51" W, A DISTANCE OF 416.85 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID
CURVE TO THE LEFT, A DISTANCE OF 422.4! FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE THENCE S 81" 23' 46" W, ALONG A RADIAL LINE, A DISTANCE OF 63.00
FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE EASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 819.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH EEARS N 04" 34' 04°
W, A DISTANCE OF 115.29 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC CF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 11538 FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE THENCE
S 81 23 46" W, A DISTANCE OF 116.02 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF & CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 250.00 FEET AND A
CHORD WHICH BEARS N B9' 38° 05" W, & DISTANCE OF 109.13 FEET, THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, & DISTANCE OF 109.58 FEET
TC A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N 80° 38 56" W, A DISTANCE COF 32.50 FEET, THENCE N 20° 09' 54" W, A DISTANCE OF 55.00 FEET; THENCE N 79
42° 44" W, A DISTANCE OF 500.00 FEET: THENCE N 78 23" 16" W, A DISTANCE OF 50.65 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE
NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 538.34 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 75 14" 34" W, A DISTANCE OF 75.09 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF
SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 75.15 FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE; THENCE S 17" 54' 07" W, ALONG A RAD(AL LINE A DISTANCE OF
116.00 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 800.41 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N
64 53° 168" W, A DISTANCE OF 86.84 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 86,58 FEET TO THE END OF S0
CURVE: THENCE N 66" 06" 07" W, A DISTANCE OF 105.63 FEET; THENCE N 66" 05' 25" W, A DISTANCE OF 186.81 FEET; THENCE N 06" 31" 57" W, A
DISTANCE OF 162.15 FEET, THENCE N 15" 3" 04" W, A DISTANCE OF 59582 FEET; THENCE N 25" 37' 03" W, A DISTANCE OF 19240 FEET, THENCE N O4°
40" 20" E A DISTANCE OF 59.41 FEET; THENCE N 44' 0! 32" E, A DISTANCE OF 226.33 FEET; THENCE N 20" 35' 28" E, A DISTANCE OF 131.84 FEET;
THEACE S 56" 33' 29" E, A DISTANCE OF 104,81 FEET; THENCE S 88" 54' 44" E, A DISTANCE OF 99.78 FEET; THENCE & 76' 28" 56" E, A DISTANCE OF
156.24 FEET; THENCE N 77" 54' 23" E, A DISTANCE OF 202.64 FEET, THENCE N 61" 16" 50" E, A DISTANCE OF 75.39 FEET; THENCE N 00" 52° 45" W, A
DISTANCE OF 112.94 FEET, THENCE N 56" 43" 49" W, A DISTANCE OF 88.91 FEET; THENCE N 277 217 05" W, A DISTANCE OF 121.53 FEET, THENCE N 08
48" 08" E A DISTANCE OF 310.42 FEET, THENCE N 57" 04° 03" E. A DISTANCE OF 151.30 FEET. THENCE N 04' 04’ 29" E, A DISTANCE COF 14.96 FEET;
THENCE N 25 24" 35° E A DISTANCE OF 35.78 FEET; THENCE N 307 43" 47" E, A DISTANCE OF 28.08 FEET; THENCE S 5¢° 16" 13" E A DISTAWE OF
175.00 FEET; THENCE N 30" 43" 47" E, A DISTANCE OF 26.35 FEET; THENCE S 58" 16' 13" E, A DISTANCE OF 437.72 FEET TO THE BECINNING OF A
NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 85%.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 24" 24° 01" £ A DISTANVCE OF 87.04
FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF B7.08 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A REVERSE CURVE COMNCAVE
NORTHWNESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 15 35' 12" E, A DISTANCE OF 7.54 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF
SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, A DISTANCE OF 7.56 FEET TO THE END OF SAID CURVE: THENCE N 30 43" 47" E. A DISTANCE OF 1443.50 FEET TO A PQINT OF
CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 231.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS N 17 24" 50" E A DISTANCE OF 106.41
FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, A DISTANCE OF 107.37 FEET TO A SOINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N 04 05' 53" E, A DISTANCE
OF 136.94 FEET. THENCE S 85 54' 07" E, A DISTANCE OF 70.00 FEET; THENCE S O4° 05' 53" W, 4 DISTANCE OF 136.94 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE
OF A CURVE CONCAVE WESTERLY, HAVING A RAD[US OF 301.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S !7° 24" 50" W, A DISTANCE OF 138.65 FEET; THENCE
ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 129.91 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE S 300 43" 477 W, A DISTANCE OF 513.37
FEET; THENCE N B0 37" 10" E, A DISTANCE OF 337.23 FEET;

CONTINUED ON SHEET 2

HAMILTON UNION PARK EAST—ASSESSMENT AREA 2
ENGINEERNG & SURVEYING, INC. PASCO COUNTY, FLORIDA
i | ————— — -
o ¥ mon e s sl zoe BV Jossssooo ks siom e eran |17

Page 28 of 31



SKETCH & DESCRIPTION = NOT A SURVEY

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: (CoNTINUED)

THENCE & 45 37° 31" E, A OISTANCE OF S587.92 FEET A FOINT ON THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 35 AND THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF TRACT 68 CF THE
UNSECORDED PLAT OF NEW RIVER RANCHETTS UNIT 3; THENCE ALONG THE SOUNDWRIES OF SAID TRACT 68 THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES; (1) N 89 54" 13 E, A
DISTANCE OF 108861 FEET TO THE BECINNING OF A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE NCRTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 175.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH
BEARS 5 34" 52" 41" W, A DISTANCE OF 50.94 FEET; (2)THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 61.25 FEET TD A POINT OF
TANGENCY; (3JTHENCE S 44' 54' 19" W, A OISTANCE OF 950.78 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORT-WESTERLY, HWING A RADIUS OF 175.00
FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS 5 67 24 19" W, A [ISTANCE OF 13394 FEET; (4]THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURME TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 137.44
FEET T0 A POINT OF TANGENCY; (S)THENCE S 89" 54" 18° W, A DISTANCE OF 260.54 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 69 AND THE EAST SOUNDARY
OF S4ID SECTION 35; THENCE S O0F 07" 15" W, ALONG SAID POUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET; THENCE N 89 41" 267 W, LEAVING SA[D BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE
OF 651.35 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY, HAVING A RALIUS OF 500.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH EEARS S 84" 22° 57" W,
A DISTANCE OF 103.26 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT, A DISTANCE OF 10345 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE S 78 27° 19" W,
A DISTANCE OF 8.73 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE OF A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 550.00 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH EEARS S B85
08" 21" W, A DISTANCE OF 147.08 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT, A DISTANCE OF 147.52 FEET TO A POINT OF TANGENCY; THENCE N
86 10" 37" W, A DISTANCE OF 112.16 FEET; THENCE S 6% 08° 227 E, A DISTANCE OF 76.65 FEET, THENCE S 67 42" 46" E A DISTANCE OF B4.64 FEET, THENCE S
63 16" (3" E A DISTANCE OF 20.85 FEET, THDWE S &7 38" 48" E A DISTANCE OF 70.%6 FEET; THENCE S 47" 18" 16" E A DISTANCE OF 73.23 FEET; THENCE §
35 27" 55" E, A DISTANCE OF 130.74 FEET; THENCE S 56" 57" 33" £, A O(STANCE (F 29643 FEET; THENCE S 28 21" 58" E, A DISTANCE OF 255.90 FEET. THENCE
S 20F 43 09" E A DISTANCE OF 289,63 FEET, THENCE S 47° 29' 52" E, A DISTANCE OF 234.66 FEET TO THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SALD SECTION 25 THENCE S 00
07" 157 W, ALONG SALD BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 1630.30 FEET TD THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

THE ABOVE PARCEL CONTAINING 157.62 ACRES, NORE OR LESS,

Adgroh J. Murphy, PSM Date
Florida Prefessional Surveyer & Mapper No. 8768
for Hamilton Engineering and Surveying, Inc.
Cerzificate of Autherization Ne. LB70132

HAMILTON UNION PARK EAST—ASSESSMENT AREA 2

4 ENGINEERNG & SURVEYING, INC. PASCO COUNTY, FLORIDA
| T L N 3
3405 W. LEMON STREET TEL (813) 250-3535 OWNLE qu T 57222017 Jorn|
TAMEA, FLORIDA 33605 LBF7013 FAX (813) 250—36%6 135—26—20 03562.0001 AS SHOWN R a/10/00:0 N 277

Page 29 of 31



P. ALLOCATION OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS COSTS, PROPOSED DEBT

The Series 2019 Area Two Project costs, developer contributions to fund public improvement
costs, and the other uses of bond proceeds are used as proxy for total benefit. As described in the
Master Engineer’s Report, the completed public infrastructure costs are estimated in the amount
of $9.41 million for Assessment Area Two. The following table sets forth the allocation of public
improvements costs (“PIC”) among the assessable property, including an allowance for other uses
of bond proceeds such as deposit to the debt service reserve fund, capitalized interest, costs of
issuances, and other uses.

Table 12 - Allocation of Master Public Improvement Costs for Assessment Area Two

Total Total PIC (as proxy | Benefit Per
Lot Width Units ERU | Total ERU | % ERU for benefit) Unit
TH 102 0.47 47.94 17.5% $1,960,744 $19,223
40 103 0.80 82.40 30.1% $3,370,156 $32,720
50 103 1.00 103.00 37.6% $4,212,695 $40,900
60 34 1.20 40.80 14.9% $1,668,718 $49,080
Total 342 274.14 | 100.0% $11,212,313
Table 13 — Comparison of Total Series 2019 Bond Debt with PIC per Lot
Lot Width A-1 A-2 Total PIC | Debt Over/(Under) PIC
TH $8,599 $9,111 $17,710 $19,223 ($1,513)
40 $15,554 $14,591 $30,145 $32,720 ($2,575)
50 $19,442 $18,239 $37,681 $40,900 ($3,218)
60 $23,331 $21,887 $45,218 $49,080 ($3,862)

Page 30 of 31



Q. CONCEPT PLAN AND BOND MAP

Page 31 of 31



EXHIBIT 8.


























































EXHIBIT 9.




RESOLUTION NO. 2019-04

A RESOLUTION DELEGATING TO THE CHAIRPERSON OF THE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF UNION PARK EAST COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (THE "DISTRICT") THE AUTHORITY TO
APPROVE THE SALE, ISSUANCE AND TERMS OF SALE OF UNION
PARK EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2019A-1 (ASSESSMENT
AREA TWO) AND UNION PARK EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE AND REFUNDING
BONDS, SERIES 2019A-2 (ASSESSMENT AREA TWO) AS SEPARATE
SERIES OF BONDS UNDER THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE
(COLLECTIVELY, THE "BONDS"); ESTABLISHING THE PARAMETERS
FOR THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS, INTEREST RATES, MATURITY
DATES, AND OTHER DETAILS THEREOF; APPROVING THE FORM
OF AND AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRPERSON TO ACCEPT THE
CONTRACT FOR PURCHASE FOR SAID BONDS; APPROVING THE
FORMS OF FOURTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE AND
FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE AND AUTHORIZING
THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY THEREOF BY CERTAIN
OFFICIALS AND OFFICERS OF THE DISTRICT; APPROVING THE
FORM OF PRELIMINARY LIMITED OFFERING MEMORANDUM
RELATING TO THE BONDS AND AUTHORIZING THE USE THEREOF;
APPROVING THE FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
AGREEMENT RELATING TO SAID BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE VICE
CHAIRPERSON AND ASSISTANT SECRETARIES TO ACT IN THE
STEAD OF THE CHAIRPERSON OR THE SECRETARY AS THE CASE
MAY BE; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES OF
THE DISTRICT TO TAKE ALL ACTIONS REQUIRED AND EXECUTE
AND DELIVER ALL DOCUMENTS, INSTRUMENTS AND
CERTIFICATES NECESSARY IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE,
SALE AND DELIVERY OF SAID BONDS; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN
OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES OF THE DISTRICT TO TAKE ALL
ACTIONS AND ENTER INTO ALL AGREEMENTS REQUIRED IN
CONNECTION WITH THE ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF
THE ASSESSMENT AREA TWO PROJECT AND THE REFUNDING AND
REDEMPTION OF THE DISTRICT'S OUTSTANDING CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2017A-3 (THE "SERIES
2017A-3 BONDS"); SPECIFYING THE APPLICATION OF THE
PROCEEDS OF SAID BONDS; PROVIDING CERTAIN OTHER DETAILS
WITH RESPECT TO SAID BONDS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.



WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Union Park East Community
Development District (the "Board" and the "District" respectively) has determined to
proceed at this time with the sale and issuance of the Union Park East Community
Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2019A-1
(Assessment Area Two) and Union Park East Community Development District
Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2019A-2 (Assessment
Area Two) (collectively, the "Bonds") to be issued under and pursuant to a Master
Trust Indenture, dated as of June 1, 2017 (the "Master Indenture"), from the District to
U.S. Bank National Association, Orlando, Florida, as trustee (the "Trustee"), as
amended and supplemented by a Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture and a Fifth
Supplemental Trust Indenture (each a "Supplemental Indenture" and, collectively with
the Master Indenture, the "Indenture"), each to be dated as of the first day of the first
month and year in which Bonds are issued thereunder, and each from the District to
the Trustee;

WHEREAS, the Board has received a proposal from FMSbonds, Inc. (the
"Underwriter") for the purchase of the Bonds within parameters to be established by
the Board and the Board has determined that authorization of the Chairperson or
other designated person to enter into a Bond Purchase Contract (the "Purchase
Contract") in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit "A" for the sale of the
Bonds to the Underwriter within the parameters herein set forth is in the best
interests of the District for the reasons hereafter indicated; and

WHEREAS, in conjunction with the sale and issuance of the Bonds it is
necessary to approve the forms of Supplemental Indentures, and to establish the
parameters for the principal amounts, interest rates, maturities, redemption
provisions, underwriting discount, costs and certain other details with respect thereto
as set forth in Schedule I attached hereto (the "Parameters"); to authorize the
Chairperson to approve the use of the Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum
relating to the Bonds and the form of the final Limited Offering Memorandum; to
approve forms of the Bonds; and to provide for various other matters with respect to
the Bonds, the undertaking of the Assessment Area Two Project and the refunding and
redemption of all of the outstanding Series 2017A-3 Bonds;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that:

1. Definitions. All words and phrases used herein in capitalized form,
unless otherwise defined herein, shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the
Indenture.

2. Award. The Purchase Contract in the form attached hereto as Exhibit
"A" is hereby approved in substantial form and the sale of the Bonds to the
Underwriter upon the terms and conditions therein set forth, but within the
Parameters, is hereby approved. The Chairperson and the Secretary are hereby
authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Purchase Contract on behalf of the



District, with such changes, additions, deletions and insertions as shall be approved by
the official executing such Purchase Contract, which approval shall be conclusively
evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof. The Chairperson is hereby authorized
to execute and the Secretary is authorized to attest the Purchase Contract, which,
when executed and delivered by the District and the Underwriter, shall be the legal,
valid, binding obligation of the District, enforceable in accordance with its terms. The
Chairperson and the Secretary are hereby authorized and directed to execute, by
manual or facsimile signature, seal or cause a facsimile seal to be impressed thereon,
and deliver or cause to be delivered to the Trustee the Bonds for authentication and
then to deliver or cause to be delivered the Bonds to or upon the order of the
Underwriter, upon payment by the Underwriter of the purchase price.

3. Negotiated Sale. The Board hereby determines that a negotiated sale of
the Bonds to the Underwriter is in the best interests of the District because the market
for instruments such as the Bonds i1s limited, because of prevailing market conditions
and because the delays caused by soliciting competitive bids could adversely affect the
District's ability to issue and deliver the Bonds.

4. Ratification of Master Indenture; Approval of the Forms of
Supplemental Indentures. Attached hereto as Exhibit "B" are the forms of each of
the Supplemental Indentures, which are each hereby authorized and approved, subject
to such changes, additions, deletions and insertions as shall be approved by the
Chairperson and the Secretary, which approval shall be conclusively evidenced by the
execution thereof. The Chairperson is hereby authorized to execute and the Secretary
1s authorized to attest each Supplemental Indenture and the Chairperson is hereby
authorized to deliver to the Trustee each Supplemental Indenture, each of which, when
executed and delivered by the Trustee, shall constitute the legal, valid, binding
obligation of the District, enforceable in accordance with its respective terms. The
Master Indenture as executed and delivered and the appointment of U.S. Bank
National Association, as Trustee, Paying Agent and Bond Registrar under the Master
Indenture is hereby ratified and confirmed and U.S. Bank National Association is
hereby appointed as Trustee, Paying Agent and Bond Registrar under each
Supplemental Indenture.

5. Description of Bonds. The Bonds shall be dated as of their date of
delivery and may be issued in one or more Series having such details as shall be set
forth in the Purchase Contract and as reflected in the corresponding Supplemental
Indenture, but within the Parameters. The Bonds of each Series may be signed by the
manual or facsimile signature of the Chairperson and initially countersigned by the
manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary. The Bonds of each Series shall, subject
to the Parameters, be in the forms and subject to redemption on the terms, at the times
and prices and in the manner provided in the Purchase Contract and in the form of
Bonds attached to the corresponding Supplemental Indenture, which forms are each
hereby approved, subject to such changes, additions, deletions and insertions as shall
be approved by the Chairperson, which approval shall be conclusively evidenced by the

3



execution thereof. The Chairperson is hereby authorized to execute and the Secretary
1s authorized to attest the Bonds and the Chairperson is hereby authorized to deliver to
the Trustee for authentication and delivery to the Underwriter, the Bonds of each
Series, which, when executed and delivered by the Trustee, shall be the legal, valid,
binding obligations of the District, enforceable in accordance with their respective
terms.

6. Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum and Limited Offering
Memorandum; Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The form of the Preliminary
Limited Offering Memorandum is attached hereto as Exhibit "C," which is hereby
approved subject to such changes, additions, deletions and insertions as shall be
approved by the Chairperson. The Chairperson is hereby authorized to approve the
content of the final form of the Limited Offering Memorandum, to be dated the date of
execution and delivery of the Purchase Contract (the "Limited Offering
Memorandum"), relating to the Bonds. The Chairperson and the Secretary are hereby
authorized to execute on behalf of the District such Limited Offering Memorandum
with such changes, additions, deletions and insertions thereto as such officers may
approve (such approval to be conclusively evidenced by their execution of said Limited
Offering Memorandum), and to deliver such Limited Offering Memorandum to the
Underwriter in sufficient quantities for use by the Underwriter in marketing the
Bonds. The Chairperson is hereby delegated the authority to "deem final" the
preliminary form of Limited Offering Memorandum, as of its date, for the purposes and
within the meaning of Section 240.15¢2-12 Code of Federal Regulations (the "SEC
Rule") (except for information concerning the offering prices, interest rates, selling
compensation, aggregate principal amount, principal amount per maturity, delivery
dates, ratings or other terms dependent upon such matters, and except for such
technical and conforming changes which shall be approved by an Authorized Officer
which approval shall be evidenced by the execution thereof).

The Continuing Disclosure Agreement relating to the Bonds in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit "D" is hereby approved, subject to such changes, additions,
deletions and insertions as shall be approved by the Chairperson, which approval shall
be conclusively evidenced by the execution thereof. The Chairperson is hereby
authorized to execute and the Secretary is authorized to attest the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement, which, when executed and delivered by the District shall be the
legal, valid, binding obligation of the District, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

7. Open Meetings. It is hereby found and determined that all official acts
of this Board concerning and relating to the issuance, sale, and delivery of the Bonds,
including but not limited to adoption of this Resolution, were taken in open meetings of
the members of the Board and all deliberations of the members of the Board that
resulted in such official acts were in meetings open to the public, in compliance with all
legal requirements including, but not limited to, the requirements of Florida Statutes,
Section 286.011.



8. Other Actions. The Chairperson, the Secretary, and all other members,
officers and employees of the Board and the District are hereby authorized and directed
to take all actions necessary or desirable in connection with the issuance and delivery
of the Bonds and the consummation of all transactions in connection therewith,
including the execution of all necessary or desirable certificates, documents, papers,
and agreements and the undertaking and fulfillment of all transactions referred to in
or contemplated by the Limited Offering Memorandum, the Indenture, this Resolution
and the Purchase Contract, in all cases, within the Parameters.

The Vice Chairperson is hereby authorized to act in the stead of the Chairperson
in any undertaking authorized or required of the Chairperson hereunder and any
Assistant Secretary is hereby authorized to act in the stead of the Secretary in any
undertaking authorized or required of the Secretary hereunder.

9. Deposits to Funds and Accounts. The Trustee is hereby authorized
and directed to apply the proceeds of the Bonds of each Series in the amounts and in
the manner set forth in Section 402 of the corresponding Supplemental Indenture.

10. Undertaking of the Assessment Area Two Project, Refunding of
the Series 2017A-3 Bonds and Execution and Delivery of Other Instruments.
The Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes the undertaking of the Assessment Area
Two Project as prescribed in the Supplemental Indentures, and authorizes and directs
the District staff and Consulting Engineer to proceed with due diligence to the
completion thereof in accordance with the Indenture and as described in the Limited
Offering Memorandum and authorizes and approves the refunding of the Series 2017A-
3 Bonds. The Board hereby authorizes the Chairperson and the Secretary to execute
and deliver, receive or enter into such agreements, contracts, documents, instruments,
certificates and proceedings incident thereto or necessary in order to effect the
undertaking of the Assessment Area Two Project, the refunding of all of the
outstanding Series 2017A-3 Bonds, and the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds,
including but not limited to the execution and delivery of the DTC Letter of
Representation by the District Manager on behalf of the District.

11. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its
adoption.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



PASSED in Public Session of the Board of Supervisors of Union Park East
Community Development District, this 16th day of April, 2019.

Attest:

Secretary/Assistant Secretary

UNION PARK EAST COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Chairperson/Vice Chairperson,
Board of Supervisors



SCHEDULE 1

PARAMETERS

Not to Exceed Principal Amount: $14,000,000 in the aggregate for all Series to
be allocated among Series based on market
conditions.

Not to Exceed Interest Rate: Maximum lawful rate.

Not to Exceed Maturity Date: Maximum allowed by law.

Maximum Underwriter’s Discount: 2.0%.

Redemption Provisions: Each Series of Bonds shall be subject to

redemption as set forth in the forms of the
respective Series of Bonds attached to the
corresponding form of Supplemental Indenture
attached hereto.



EXHIBIT 10.




FOURTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE

UNION PARK EAST

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

TO

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
AS TRUSTEE

Dated as of May 1, 2019




TABLE OF CONTENTS

This Table of Contents is incorporated herein for ease of reference only and
shall not be deemed a part of the Fourth Supplemental Trust Indenture.

Section 101.

Section 201.
Section 202.
Section 203.
Section 204.
Section 205.
Section 206.
Section 207.

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

DO I It OIS - et

ARTICLE I1
AUTHORIZATION, ISSUANCE AND PROVISIONS OF SERIES 2019A-1

BONDS

Authorization of Series 2019A-1 Bonds; Book-Entry Only Form.......
L IILS ettt et
Dating; Interest Accrual.............ooviiieeeiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e,
DN OMIN A IONS e e e
Paying AGent......cooooviviiiiiiiiiiei e
Bond RegIStIar......ccoiviiieiiiiiiiee e e
Conditions Precedent to Issuance of Series 2019A-1 Bonds..............

Section 301.

DEPOSIT OF SERIES 2019A-1 BOND PROCEEDS AND APPLICATION

ARTICLE III
REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2019A-1 BONDS

Bonds Subject to Redemption ............cceeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeceeee
ARTICLE IV

THEREOF; ESTABLISHMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND OPERATION

Section 401.
Section 402.
Section 403.

Section 404.
Section 405.
Section 406.
Section 407.
Section 408.

Section 501.
Section 502.
Section 503.

THEREOF

Establishment of ACCOUNTS .....cc..coovviiiiiiiiieeeiiiiiieeeeee e
Use of Series 2019A-1 Bond Proceeds............coeeeeeeieiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeenn,
Series 2019A Acquisition and Construction Account; Series
2019A-1 Capitalized Interest ACCOUNL ......covvveeiiiiiiiieeiiiiiieeeieiiee,
Series 2019A-1 Costs of Issuance Account ...........ccceeeeeeeeiereveiiieieennn...
Series 2019A-1 Reserve AcCoOUNt..........veeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee,
Amortization Installments; Selection of Bonds for Redemption .......
Tax Covenants and Rebate Account ..............ccceeeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeennnnn,
Series 2019A-1 Revenue Account; Application of Revenues and
Investment Earnings .......ccccoeeiviiiiiiiiiiiiieiieee e

ARTICLE V
CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE

Acceptance DY TrUStee.........uuuuveeeeeeiiiiiiiiiccieee e
Limitation of Trustee's Responsibility.........cccccoeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieneeennnnnn,
TrUSEEE'S DULIES ..vvvviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieiitetaereeaeaeeeaeaaaeeeaaeeeaeaaaaaasasaaeaaaaaaae



Section 601.

Section 701.
Section 702.
Section 703.
Section 704.
Section 705.
Section 706.

Section 707.
Section 708.

ARTICLE VI

ADDITIONAL BONDS
No Parity Bonds; Limitation on Parity Assessments ........................ 19
ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS
Confirmation of Master Indenture.........cccc.ooooviiiiiiiieeeeiiiiiiiiiieeeen. 20
Continuing Disclosure Agreement ..........ccceeeeevvviieeeeiiiiieeeeeiiiieeeeeeinennn. 20
Additional Covenant Regarding Assessments..........ccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennnnn. 20
Collection of AssessSments .........cccceevvvveiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee, 20
Foreclosure of Assessment Lien........cccccoeeviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceeeeeeeeeeeee, 21

Owner Direction and Consent with Respect to Series 2019A
Acquisition and Construction Account Upon Occurrence of Event
Of DefaUlt..eeeviiiiiiiiiiiiii e —a—————— 21
Assignment of District’s Rights Under Collateral Assignment......... 22
Enforcement of True-Up Agreement and Completion Agreement.... 22

Exhibit A — Description of Assessment Area Two Project
Exhibit B — Form of Bonds
Exhibit C — Form of Requisition for Assessment Area Two Project

11



FOURTH SUPPLEMENTAL
TRUST INDENTURE

THIS FOURTH SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE (the "Fourth
Supplemental Indenture") is dated as of May 1, 2019, from UNION PARK EAST
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (the "District") to U.S. BANK
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as trustee (the "Trustee"), a national banking
association, authorized to accept and execute trusts of the character herein set
forth, with its designated corporate trust office located at 225 East Robinson Street,
Suite 250, Orlando, Florida 32801, Attention: Corporate Trust Department.

WHEREAS, the District has entered into a Master Trust Indenture, dated as
of June 1, 2017 (the "Master Indenture," and together with this Fourth
Supplemental Indenture